
 

 

MINUTES 
KEY COLONY BEACH CITY COMMISSION 

PUBLIC HEARING 

Thursday, August 15th, 2024 – 9:30 am  

Located at Marble Hall, 600 W. Ocean Drive, Key Colony Beach 

& via Zoom Conferencing 

 

 

1. Call to Order, Pledge of Allegiance, Prayer & Roll Call: The Key Colony Beach Public Hearing was called to 

order by Mayor Joey Raspe at 9:30 AM, followed by the Pledge of Allegiance, Prayer, and Rollcall. Present: Mayor 

Joey Raspe, Vice-Mayor Freddie Foster (via Zoom), Commissioner Tom Harding, Commissioner Tom DiFransico, 

Commissioner Doug Colonell. Also Present: City Administrator John Bartus, City Attorney Dirk Smits, Building 

Official Tony Loreno, Building Official Ed Borysiewicz (via Zoom), Chief of Police Kris DiGiovanni, Public Works 

Department Head Mike Guarino, Administrative Assistant Tammie Anderson, City Clerk Silvia Roussin, Planning 

& Zoning Chair George Lancaster. 

 

Public Attendance: 12 

 

2. Agenda Additions, Deletions, or Changes: City Clerk Roussin informed on the following agenda changes: 

 

➢ Under Item 9 – Commissioner comments and responses by Jim LaRue and proposed action requirements regarding 

Comprehensive Plan amendments. 

➢ Under Item 11 – Comment by the Building Official regarding the 1000 W. Ocean Drive property. 

 

The Commission had no objections to the changes. 

 

3. Citizen Comments & Correspondence: None. 
 

4. Administration of Oath of Witnesses: City Clerk Roussin administered the Oath of Witness to all planning on 

testifying. 

 

5. Disclosure of Ex-Parte Communication: None. 

 

6. Discussion/Approval of a recommendation by the Planning & Zoning Board for the installation of a 15,000 

lb. elevator-style boat lift on a canal that is less than 60 feet wide for the property located at 190 15th Circle 

a. Presentation by the Building Department:  

b. Statement by Applicant 

c. Letters of Consent from Neighbors 

d. Planning & Zoning Board Recommendation – Chair George Lancaster 

i. Meeting Minutes from July 17th, 2024 

ii. Letter of Recommendation 

e. Commission Discussions 

f. Motion to approve, deny, or approve with conditions 

 

Mayor Raspe introduced the agenda item and asked Planning & Zoning Chair Lancaster to elaborate. 

Planning & Zoning Chair Lancaster informed on the Board’s recommendation to deny the request. Mayor Raspe 

gave further detail on the type of boatlift, dimensions, and capacity, and the Board recommended allowing the 

applicant to come back with a revised plan.  

Building Official Borysiewicz provided further information on the width of the canal, city regulations, and the 

possibility of Variance.  

Commissioner Colonell asked about available alternatives. Planning & Zoning Chair Lancaster stated that different 

types of lifts should be used that do not impede the canal. Building Official Borysiewicz explained that a four-post 

lift would not fit in that area and anticipated a variance in the future.  

 



 

2 
 

There was no other discussion, and Mayor Raspe asked for a motion.  

 

MOTION: Motion made by Vice-Mayor Foster to deny. Mayor Raspe asked for a second. Commissioner 

DiFransico seconded the motion.  

DISCUSSION: None. 

ON THE MOTION: Rollcall vote. Unanimous approval. 

 

 City Clerk Roussin informed of the motion to deny having been approved. 

 

7. Discussion/Approval for a recommendation by the Planning & Zoning Board for installing a 16,000 lb. 4 

post boat lift for the property located at 43 Sadowski Causeway. 

a. Presentation by the Building Department  

b. Statement by Applicant 

c. Letters of Consent from Neighbors 

d. Planning & Zoning Board Recommendation – Chair George Lancaster 

i. Meeting Minutes from July 17th, 2024 

ii. Letter of Recommendation 

e. Commission Discussions 

f. Motion to approve, deny, or approve with conditions 

 

Mayor Raspe introduced the agenda item and asked Planning & Zoning Chair Lancaster to elaborate. Chair Lancaster 

informed about Board’s recommendation for approval and that similar lifts in the area have been approved before. 

There were no additional questions, and Mayor Raspe asked for a motion. 

 

MOTION: Motion made by Commissioner DiFransico to approve. Mayor Raspe asked for a second. Commissioner 

Colonell seconded the motion. 

DISCUSSION: None. 

ON THE MOTION: Rollcall vote. Unanimous approval.  

 

8. Discussion/Approval for a recommendation by the Planning & Zoning Board of a Release of Unity of Title 

for the property located at Glunz Ocean Beach Club, Lots 8, 8A, 9, and 9A. 

a.  Presentation by the Building Department  

b.  Statement by Applicant 

c.  Planning & Zoning Board Recommendation – Chair George Lancaster 

i. Meeting Minutes from July 17th, 2024 

ii.          Letter of Recommendation  

d.  Commission Discussions 

e.  Motion to approve, deny, or approve with conditions 

 

Mayor Raspe introduced the agenda item and asked Chair Lancaster to elaborate. Chair Lancaster informed about 

the Board's recommendation to approve the division of the property.  

There were no additional questions, and Mayor Raspe asked for a motion. 

 

MOTION: Motion made by Vice-Mayor Foster to approve. Mayor Raspe asked for a second. Commissioner 

DiFransico seconded the motion. 

DISCUSSION: Commissioner Harding asked the City Clerk to follow up with sewer billing. 

ON THE MOTION: Rollcall vote. Unanimous approval.  

 

9. Discussion/Approval of a recommendation by the Planning & Zoning Board on Peril of Flood & 

Comprehensive Plan Amendments **TENTATIVE PENDING THE PLANNING & ZONING MEETING 

ON 8/12/2024** 

a. Proposed Peril of Flood Amendments  

b. Proposed Comprehensive Plan Amendment  

c. Proposed 5-year Schedule of Capital Improvements  



 

3 
 

 

 

Mayor Raspe introduced the agenda item and asked Planning & Zoning Chair Lancaster to elaborate. Chair 

Lancaster informed that the Board recommended approval with the implemented suggestions per the last Planning & 

Zoning meeting.  

Commissioner DiFransico stated disagreement with the verbiage of ‘ground floor’. Chair Lancaster deferred to 

Planner Jim LaRue’s comments but gave an understanding of the Commissioner's concerns. 

Building Official Borysiewicz informed that verbiage in the Code of Ordinances refers to the ‘lowest habitable floor’ 

in several areas of the Code but is aware of the term ‘ground floor’ being used in the Comprehensive Plan.  

Commissioner DiFransico suggested putting the definition in the Comprehensive Plan as well. 

Mayor Raspe asked for legal direction on adding the language. 

City Attorney Smits confirmed the ability to change language and to have a motion to approve the modifications that 

occurred at the Planning & Zoning meeting, as well as changing the definition of ‘ground floor’ to ‘lowest 

inhabitable floor’.  

Commissioner DiFransico commented that some additional changes may be needed regarding the property at the end 

of 13th Street and questions on green space for use by residents. City Attorney Smits gave his understanding that the 

property is owned privately and that green space can be privately owned without being open to the public. City 

Attorney Smits referred to Jim LaRue with questions on the Comprehensive Plan and agreed that the question on 

public use must be resolved. 

Commissioner DiFransico further commented on language of manufactured housing to facilitate affordable housing 

and the City’s intent to implement it.  

City Attorney Smits explained that the question was discussed during the Planning & Zoning meeting and elaborated 

on an existing development agreement with requirements for seven affordable units. City Attorney Smits cautioned 

on moving too fast and wanting to see changes made in writing. City Clerk Roussin informed that Jim LaRue had 

asked for confirmation on the changes before implementing them in the Comprehensive Plan. 

City Attorney Smits recommended postponing the discussion until the next meeting to have a final draft available for 

review. 

Commissioner DiFransico recommended having a follow-up system to determine that Comprehensive Plan 

requirements will be met on time. 

Commissioner Harding recommended assigning a champion to monitor the status of progress. 

Commissioner DiFransico recommended that the City Administrator take on the responsibility.  

City Administrator Bartus informed that Jim LaRue recommended keeping the affordable housing portion in the 

Comprehensive Plan for Department of Commerce purposes and confirmed his ability to take on the responsibility 

described by Commissioner DiFransico. 

Commissioner DiFransico suggested that the verbiage on affordable housing reflects promotion rather than a 

commitment and suggested possible verbiage to reflect the city’s commitment to affordable housing. 

Mayor Raspe recalled a recommendation during the Planning & Zoning meeting for the verbiage needing to be 

included. Chair Lancaster agreed with the recollection and the State wanting to see the specific language. 

Commissioner DiFransico questioned what the State is asking for exactly. Chair Lancaster stated that this was a 

question for Jim LaRue.  

City Administrator Bartus commented that the language is very specific for a Comprehensive Plan and a good 

question for Jim LaRue.  

City Attorney Smits reiterated the importance of having a final draft document to review. 

City Attorney Smits deferred to Jim LaRue on the question if the document has to go back to the Planning & Zoning 

Board.  

Chair Lancaster confirmed that the items discussed were recommended for approval by the Board.  

City Attorney Smits stated that the Commission can proceed as long as it stays within the approved scope but wanted 

to confirm with Jim LaRue. 

10. Discussion/Approval of a recommendation by the Building Official for a revision of the City’s Floodplain 

Regulations **TENTATIVE PENDING THE PLANNING & ZONING MEETING ON 8/12/2024** 

a. Change of the Substantial Improvement time-period calculations from 3 years to 1 year 

 

Mayor Raspe introduced the agenda item and asked Chair Lancaster to elaborate. Chair Lancaster informed about 

the Board's recommendation to approve the recommendation and did not expect a negative impact. 



 

4 
 

Building Official Borysiewicz stated to agree with the change for the benefit of residents. 

City Administrator Bartus informed that the City of Marathon completed the same change in 2021 with no negative 

impacts on the CRS rating. 

 

There was no further discussion, and Mayor Raspe asked for a motion to approve.  

 

MOTION: Motion made by Commissioner DiFransico to approve. Mayor Raspe asked for a second. Commissioner 

Colonell seconded the motion.  

DISCUSSION: None. 

ON THE MOTION: Rollcall vote. Unanimous approval. 

 

b. Change of the Design Flood Elevation from FEMA Flood Zone plus 1 foot (FBC Requirement) plus 2 feet (City 

of Key Colony Beach additional freeboard) back to FEMA Flood Zone plus 1 foot (FBC Requirement). 

 

Chair Lancaster informed on the Board’s recommendation to go back to FEMA Zone Plus 1 foot with the stipulation 

that the Commission will diligently find the points to make up for the ones that are lost for going to Plus 1.  

Building Official Loreno agreed with the change to enable residents to rebuild and remodel faster and easier. 

Building Official Borysiewicz stated that the city always complied with FEMA and State regulations until the Code 

was changed two years ago. Building Official Borysiewicz confirmed that the increase in freeboard led to an 

increase in the CRS discount but consequently made 85% of the city’s structures non-conforming. Building Official 

Borysiewicz further informed on having been in contact with insurance agents and CRS consultant Lori Lehr for 

information on receiving discount points. 

Vice-Mayor Foster informed that the city’s former Building Official does not believe the effort is worth the result 

and the Vice-Mayor agreed with going back to the FEMA Plus 1 requirement. 

Building Official Borysiewicz explained that the compliance for the city would go to 50% with the suggested change 

and gave an example of non-compliance resulting from the current 2 feet of additional freeboard. 

CRS Consultant Lor Lehr informed on having provided information on the consequences of removing the extra 2 

feet of freeboard and to be able to find additional points.  Lori Lehr further advised to make decisions based on the 

importance of what is good for the community and not for good CRS credits. Lori Lehr stated to be able to help the 

city as directed by the City Commission. 

Chair Lancaster confirmed this to follow with the Board's recommendation and appreciated Lori Lehr’s specific 

comments. 

Lori Lehr gave confidence in finding additional points and discussions to follow on how to go forward. 

Commissioner Harding offered to work with staff and Lori Lehr on the offset. 

 

Mayor Raspe asked for a motion to approve or deny. 

 

MOTION: Motion made by Commissioner DiFransico to approve. Mayor Raspe asked for a second. Vice-Mayor 

Foster seconded the motion. 

DISCUSSION: None. 

ON THE MOTION: Rollcall vote. Unanimous approval.  

 

City Clerk Roussin informed that both previous motions require an ordinance change and asked the Mayor for 

approval to direct legal. Mayor Raspe approved. 

 

11. Discussion/Approval for a recommendation to the City Commission of an Architectural Review for the 

property located at 1000 W. Ocean Drive, Key Colony Beach, Florida  

a. Presentation by the Building Department  

b. Statement by Applicant 

c. Commission Discussions 

d. Motion to approve, deny, or approve with conditions 

 

Mayor Raspe introduced the agenda item. Chair Lancaster informed that the Building Official stated several 

problems with the property and the applicant’s representative not having been attending the Planning & Zoning 



 

5 
 

meeting. Chair Lancaster informed of the Board’s recommendation to deny the request with the ability to reapply 

and neither the applicant nor the applicant’s legal representative attended the meeting. 

Commissioner Harding suggested a proposal to rezone the property into two single homes. City Attorney Smits 

advised that rezoning a property would not be easy and suggested a development agreement instead. Commissioner 

Harding suggested reaching out to the applicant to hear interest in the option and to go forward from there.  

City Attorney Smits reiterated the suggestion of a development agreement. 

Vice-Mayor Foster advised against the suggestion and recommended that the property owners resolve the matters 

first before the consideration of an agreement. 

City Attorney Smits confirmed for the property owners being in litigation and reiterated the need for a development 

agreement for cost recovery. City Attorney Smits reminded that the matter at hand was the recommendation by the 

Planning & Zoning Board to deny the applicant's request with the condition to reapply. 

 

There were no other questions and Mayor Raspe asked for a motion. 

 

MOTION: Motion made by Vice-Mayor Foster to deny. Commissioner DiFransico seconded the motion. 

DISCUSSION: City Attorney Smits clarified the motion to entail accepting the Planning & Zoning Board’s 

recommendation to deny, subject being allowed to come back. Vice-Mayor Foster confirmed the intent of his 

motion. Commissioner DiFransico asked if clear communications have been given to the applicant on what the 

problems are and what needs to be resolved. Chair Lancaster informed not having had any communications with the 

applicant. 

Vice-Mayor Foster and City Attorney Smits advised that the applicant's representative attended the Planning & 

Zoning Board meeting via Zoom but was unable to communicate effectively. 

ON THE MOTION: Rollcall vote. Unanimous approval. 

 

12. Other Business: None. 

 

13. Adjourn: The meeting adjourned at 10:10 AM. 

 

 

   Respectfully submitted, 

   Silvia Roussin 

   City Clerk 

 

                  ADOPTED: September 19, 2024 

                  Silvia Roussin  

                  City Clerk 
 














